MEETING
HENDON AREA COMMITTEE
DATE AND TIME
MONDAY 28TH JUNE, 2021
AT 7.00 PM
VENUE
HENDON TOWN HALL, THE BURROUGHS, LONDON NW4 4BG
TO:

MEMBERS OF HENDON AREA COMMITTEE (Quorum 3)

Chairman:
Vice Chairman:

Councillor Val Duschinsky
Councillor Saira Don

Councillors
Councillor Sarah Wardle
Councillor Ammar Naqvi

Councillor Elliot Simberg
Councillor Nizza Fluss

Councillor Nagus Narenthira

Substitute Members
Golnar Bokaei
Mark Shooter
Sara Conway

Linda Freedman
Laithe Jajeh

Helene Richman
Zakia Zubairi

In line with the Constitution’s Public Participation and Engagement Rules, requests to submit
public questions or comments must be submitted by 10AM on the third working day before
the date of the committee meeting. Therefore, the deadline for this meeting is Wednesday,
23rd June at 10AM. Requests must be submitted to governanceservice@barnet.gov.uk
You are requested to attend the above meeting for which an agenda is attached.
Andrew Charlwood – Head of Governance
Governance Service contact: pakeezah.rahman@barnet.gov.uk
Media Relations Contact: Tristan Garrick 020 8359 6452
ASSURANCE GROUP
Please consider the environment before printing. The average Print Cost for this Committee
has reduced by £17.53 per meeting, due to paper light working.

ORDER OF BUSINESS
Item No

Title of Report

Pages

1.

Minutes of the Previous Meeting

5 - 10

2.

Absence of Members (if any)

3.

Declarations of Members Disclosable Pecuniary Interests and
Non-Pecuniary Interests

4.

Report of the Monitoring Officer (if any)

5.

Public Comments and Questions (if any)

6.

Matters referred from the Hendon Area Residents Forum (If any)

7.

Petitions (if any)

8.

Area Committee Grants Funding - TO FOLLOW

9.

Members' Items (if any)

10.

Members Items - Applications for Neighbourhood Community
Infrastructure Levy (NCIL) Funding (if any)

11.

Highways Scheme Update - TO FOLLOW

12.

Heybourne Crescent, NW9 – Speed Survey Results between
Lanacre Avenue and Great Field

21 - 34

13.

Montrose Avenue - Speed Surveys

35 - 42

14.

Shirehall, NW4 – Speed Survey Results

43 - 48

15.

High Street, NW7 - Feasibility Study for Traffic Management

49 - 60

16.

Forward Work Programme

61 - 62

17.

Any Other Items that the Chairman Decides are Urgent

11 - 20

FACILITIES FOR PEOPLE WITH DISABILITIES
Hendon Town Hall has access for wheelchair users including lifts and toilets. If you wish to let
us know in advance that you will be attending the meeting, please telephone
governanceservice@barnet.gov.uk. People with hearing difficulties who have a text phone,
may telephone our minicom number on 020 8203 8942. All of our Committee Rooms also
have induction loops.

FIRE/EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE
If the fire alarm sounds continuously, or if you are instructed to do so, you must leave the
building by the nearest available exit. You will be directed to the nearest exit by uniformed
custodians. It is vital you follow their instructions.
You should proceed calmly; do not run and do not use the lifts.
Do not stop to collect personal belongings
Once you are outside, please do not wait immediately next to the building, but move some
distance away and await further instructions.
Do not re-enter the building until told to do so.

This page is intentionally left blank

Decisions of the Hendon Area Committee
16 March 2021
Members Present: Councillor Val Duschinsky (Chairman)
Councillor Saira Don (Vice-Chairman)
Councillor Sarah Wardle
Councillor Nizza Fluss
Councillor Elliot Simberg

1.

AGENDA ITEM 1

Councillor Nagus Narenthira
Councillor Ammar Naqvi

MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING
RESOLVED that the minutes of the previous meeting held on 01 February 2021 be
agreed as a correct record.

2.

ABSENCE OF MEMBERS (IF ANY)
None.

3.

DECLARATIONS OF MEMBERS DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY INTERESTS AND
NON-PECUNIARY INTERESTS
None.

4.

REPORT OF THE MONITORING OFFICER (IF ANY)
None.

5.

PUBLIC COMMENTS AND QUESTIONS (IF ANY)
A comment was received from Mr Nick Mearing-Smith in relation to item 10,
Edgwarebury Speed Survey.

6.

MATTERS REFERRED FROM THE HENDON AREA RESIDENTS FORUM (IF
ANY)
The Chairman introduced the report which set out the petitions referred from the Hendon
Residents Forum to the Area Committee.
Removal of double yellow lines - The Ridgeway NW7 (opposite Belmont Farm)
Sarah Ali spoke on the issues relating to increased congestion along the Ridgeway and
highlighted problematic areas along Hammers Lane and Mill Hill East.
Dangerous parking on pavements and crossing close to the school gates were causing
further delays. During school runs, parents were prevented from parking on loading bays
by ticket wardens. Sarah Ali requested a review of the area with new notices and lee way
from wardens during drop off and pick up times specifically for school runs.
The Officer advised that ward councillors had previously requested a review near the
Belmont Farm location due to a safety concern of vehicles parking on both sides of the
Ridgeway. Therefore, the implementation of the yellow lines was a safety measure for
1

5

motorists and children crossing from the bus stop. The question of issuing permits had
been raised at the Hendon Residents Forum. The parking team confirmed that permits
were not an option because the Ridgeway had four different schools in the vicinity and
therefore St Paul’s School could not be prioritised over the others.
Parking Attendants were aware of the issue and fines would not be issued for at least 30
minutes. To address concerns, parents were advised to work with the school travel team
to make observations on parking behaviour. The school travel team would also assist
parents with a map of the safest locations to park. Highways raised the issue with the
school to implement suitable measures.
RESOLVED that the Committee take no action, but that Officers liaise with the school
travel team and parents to reach a suitable solution.
No Left Turn’ at the Junction of A1 and Tithe Walk
Dr Hilary Cass circulated photos of accidents to the committee in advance of the meeting
and spoke on the matter. The issue was in relation to the left turn from the A1 into Tithe
Walk. High speed vehicles that had to suddenly slow down to get around the corner were
said to be causing repetitive accidents. Near miss accidents in the high footfall area were
also becoming increasingly dangerous for pedestrians.
Therefore, Dr Cass requested for a no left turn into the road. Officers had raised the
concerns of residents with Transport for London (TFL) and whether there was an option
for the ‘No Left Turn’ to be implemented onto Tithe Walk off the A1. TFL recommended a
turn count survey to make a count of all vehicles making the left turn at each end of Tithe
Walk and assess its impact to the A1. Additionally, a speed survey would be done during
the summer at peak hours to establish a range of results and fed back to TFL to explore
possible suitable options.
The Chairman suggested notifying Google Maps and to factor in the impact of the
Amazon warehouse nearby.
RESOLVED: The Committee unanimously approved a manual classified count at each
end of Tithe Walk for the morning and evening peak (3-hour periods) to be carried out to
incorporate a speed survey at a cost of £3,000.
7.

PETITIONS (IF ANY)
None.

8.

AREA COMMITTEE GRANTS FUNDING
The Chairman presented the report referring to Appendix 2, the Hendon Committee
Balance Summary. A balance of £119,000 was noted. Overspends and Underspends
were factored in and adjusted at £28,000 leaving the Committee with a balance of
£19,471.50.
The Committee noted the report.

9.

MEMBERS' ITEMS (IF ANY)
2

6

None.

10.

MEMBERS ITEMS' - AREA COMMITTEE FUNDING APPLICATIONS (IF ANY)
The Chairman introduced the report and advised Members that following a spend of
£3,000, there was a balance of £16,471.50. The Chairman read out the comment from
Edgware candidate, Mr Nick Mearing-Smith, to support the survey that would make the
area safer for residents.
1. Cllr Sarah Wardle – Edgwarebury Lane Speed Survey
Cllr Wardle presented the request for a feasibility study and other appropriate measures
along Edgwarebury Lane. Complaints were received from many residents and users of
the park indicating high speeds along narrow roads which made it very dangerous.
In addition, there was a lack of safe crossing points particularly to the park for which this
survey could address.
The Officer confirmed that use of all the funds could not be determined until colleagues
explored the ground work and undertook the speed survey. The request was to explore
whether crossing points could be implemented, whether the speed criteria did merit a
VAS and whether slow markings were necessary. It was noted that collision data could
be requested and added to the report to be fed back to the Committee.
Further to a discussion, the Chairman moved to a vote.
RESOLVED: The Committee unanimously approved funding of £5,000 for a feasibility
survey to consider speed reduction and other safety measures.
2. Cllr Elliot Simberg - Alders Close/Hale Lane Double Yellow Line Extension
Cllr Simberg presented the request for an extension to double yellow lines in Alders
Close and Hale Lane. Vehicles parked during the day caused a blind spot to those
coming out of Alders Close. To avoid accidents and prevent vehicles from parking on the
pavement, the proposal was to extend the yellow lines and implement the
recommendation of Officers.
Further to a discussion, the Chairman moved to a vote.
RESOLVED: The Committee unanimously approved funding of £4,737 to the extensions
and implementation of Officers’ recommendations.
3. Cllr Nagus Narenthira – Parking Solution
Cllr Narenthira presented the request for the introduction of longer length of restrictions
at the junction of Rushgrove Avenue and Crossway NW9. The lack of parking restrictions
in the area had allowed for commercial vehicles to be parked everywhere and several
proposals were received from residents to deal with the problem. To make junctions
safer, engineers had visited the area and proposed restricted parking at the Rushgrove
Park junction to increase visibility and act as deterrence to unwanted parking.
3

7

At the time of the Colindale Controlled Parking Zone (CPZ) consultation, residents had
not wanted CPZ in their area and therefore the affected areas were not included in the
CPZ.
The Officer confirmed that problems in the Rushgrove area were historical and
complaints from residents about commuter vehicles had been received.
It was noted that the confluence of parking measures being put forward and enforcement
was necessary. Potential hot points would be flagged up with parking colleagues to carry
out enforcement accordingly.
Further to a discussion, the Chairman moved to a vote.
RESOLVED: The Committee unanimously approved funding of £5,337 to introduce
waiting restrictions at the junction of Rushgrove Avenue and Crossway NW9 as well as
longer length of restrictions on the right-hand side of Crossway NW9 up to the entrance
of the park.

11.

HIGHWAYS SCHEME UPDATE
It was noted that Officers would provide an indication of time frames for proposed actions
at future meetings.
Members requested an update with regards to Brookside Park.
The Committee noted the report.

12.

PROGRESS UPDATE ON AREA COMMITTEE ACTIONS
HALE LANE, HA8 & REQUEST FOR ZEBRA CROSSING
Cllr Simberg introduced the item to implement safety measures and undertake works for
a Zebra Crossing which was to be put outside a school and Synagogue at Hale Lane.
The Chairman commended Officers for being able to find a suitable location for the zebra
crossing.
It was noted that Committee had already approved funding for a feasibility study.
Following committee’s approval of funding for further works, it would go to consultation to
review any objections before implementation.
RESOLVED: The Committee approved funding of £22,000 in the next financial year to
carry out all recommendations in the Officer’s report.

12A. BELL LANE, NW4 ZEBRA CROSSING
The Chairman highlighted the addendum to the report. The number of signatures
received in support of the petition was in fact 302.

4

8

Cllr Fluss thanked all parties involved with the works in relation to the item and approved
of the solution that had been reached.
RESOLVED: The Committee unanimously approved all the recommendations in the
Officer’s report and noted that the proposals will cost a total of £29,920. The committee
previously funded £25,000 in 2017/18 and the remaining additional funding of £4,920 will
be funded through the Local Implementation Plan. (LIP)

13.

FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME
The Committee noted the forward work programme.

14.

CIL FUNDING PRIORITIES – SETTING LOCAL PRIORITIES FOR THE HENDON
AREA COMMITTEE
Andrew Charlwood presented the report. In February, the Policy & Resources
Committee set out the CIL funding process highlighting that the only criteria to
assess CIL funding requests was the legal definition and each Area Committee
should consider, approve, and develop its own funding priorities for each financial
year starting in 2021/2022.
The report outlined the need to draft local priorities for the Hendon Area Committee
and laid out the proposed local priorities for Hendon Area Committee in Appendix A
put forth by the Chairman and Vice Chairman for discussion and agreement. A
caveat at the end of the list meant that Members could essentially approve items
outside of the Committee’s local priorities, but the list was to enable Members to
prioritise applications within the wide legal definition.
It was noted that a review would be carried out in six months’ time when more
insight and data would be offered to Members in prioritising schemes within specific
geographic areas to be able to identify areas of development.
The Officer from Growth & Development presented an overview on the council’s
priorities for town centres, priority actions for Hendon Area Committee town centres
and potential areas for future neighbourhood CIL.

15.

ANY OTHER ITEMS THAT THE CHAIRMAN DECIDES ARE URGENT
None.

The meeting finished at 7.55 pm

5

9

This page is intentionally left blank

AGENDA ITEM 10

Hendon Area Committee
28th June 2021

Members Items – Applications for
Title Neighbourhood Community Infrastructure Levy
(NCIL) Funding
Report of Head of Governance
Wards Various within Hendon
Status Public
Urgent No
Key No
Enclosures None
Officer Contact Details

Pakeezah Rahman, Governance Officer
pakeezah.rahman@barnet.gov.uk 020 8359 6452

Summary
This report informs the Hendon Area Committee that the applications listed under section 1
for Neighbourhood CIL funding have been submitted. The Committee are requested to
consider the information highlighted within this report and decide on its desired course of
action in accordance with its powers.

Officers Recommendations
1. That the Area Committee consider the requests as highlighted in section 1 of the
report.
2. That the Area Committee decide whether it wishes to:

11

(a) award funding (either fully or partially) and any conditions attached and note the
implications to the Committee’s NCIL funding budget;
(b) defer the application for funding for further information, giving reasons; or
(c) reject the application, giving reasons.

1.

WHY THIS REPORT IS NEEDED

1.1

Applications for funding from the Committee’s allocated NCIL budget have been
raised. The applications are as follows:

Title

Hub Youth Board

Raised by (Councillor):

Val Duschinsky

Ward:

Mill Hill

Member Request:

Proposal for creating a youth board and
facilities, projects and wellbeing events
targeted at 16 to 21 year olds.

Funding Requested (£):

£16,625

In consultation with:
 Is within the parameters outlined in CIL TBC
statutory and regulatory definitions
 Falls within the CIL Funding Priorities
agreed by the relevant Area Committee
 Links to priorities in any existing Council
policy or strategy and/or whether any
insight and intelligence may support the
application
 The scheme has considered any
potential impact on the Council’s
Strategic portfolio including those
considered for strategic CIL funding
 The scheme has no ongoing
incremental revenue costs to the
Council
 That the scheme budget is forecast
accurately
 That the scheme deliverability has been
assessed to ensure it can be resourced
and successfully implemented
 That the scheme outcomes and
benefits have been assessed including
benefits for the wider community and/or
including those with protected
characteristics under the Equalities Act
2010

12

And Area Lead Officer:

Cassie Bridger, on 10/06/21

Any additional information (please list any
documents here to be published with the
agenda, or circulated to the Committee):

NW7 Hub Project Budget to Run for One
Year.

Title

The Hyde School Playground Project

Raised by (Councillor):

Saira Don

Ward:

West Hendon

Member Request:

To create a safe, durable playground surface,
under existing play equipment in order that the
equipment can be used. The area is a bank
leading to the playground service.

Funding Requested (£):

£17,708.66

In consultation with (e.g. named Officer):
 Is within the parameters outlined in CIL
statutory and regulatory definitions
 Falls within the CIL Funding Priorities
agreed by the relevant Area
Committee
 Links to priorities in any existing
Council policy or strategy and/or
whether any insight and intelligence
may support the application
 The scheme has considered any
potential impact on the Council’s
Strategic portfolio including those
considered for strategic CIL funding
 The scheme has no ongoing
incremental revenue costs to the
Council
 That the scheme budget is forecast
accurately
 That the scheme deliverability has
been assessed to ensure it can be
resourced and successfully
implemented
 That the scheme outcomes and
benefits have been assessed including
benefits for the wider community
and/or including those with protected
characteristics under the Equalities Act
2010

 Removal of existing artificial grass surface
(school to keep the grass)
 Removal of existing sand layer (school to
keep the sand)
 Supply and installation of (35mm depth)
grano
 Supply and installation of Geotextile weed
suppressing membrane
 Supply and installation of the Nomow grass
 Supply and installation of the rubber crumb
infill layer
 Supply of protective fencing during the works
(if required)
 Clearing site of all waste including skip
All prices are plus VAT & fixed for 3 months

13

And Area Lead Officer (NAME), on (DATE):

Cris Tavares on 3rd June 2021

Any additional information (please list any
documents here to be published with the
agenda, or circulated to the Committee):

The Hyde School often provide their school
premises to be used by other ethnic
communities during non-school days.

Title

Anti fly-tipping measures in Goodwyn
Avenue NW7

Raised by (Councillor):

John Hart

Ward:

Mill Hill

Member Request:

12 month deployment of CCTV for Goodwyn
Avenue

Funding Requested (£):

£2,202

In consultation with (e.g. named Officer):
 Is within the parameters outlined in CIL
statutory and regulatory definitions
 Falls within the CIL Funding Priorities
agreed by the relevant Area
Committee
 Links to priorities in any existing
Council policy or strategy and/or
whether any insight and intelligence
may support the application
 The scheme has considered any
potential impact on the Council’s
Strategic portfolio including those
considered for strategic CIL funding
 The scheme has no ongoing
incremental revenue costs to the
Council
 That the scheme budget is forecast
accurately
 That the scheme deliverability has
been assessed to ensure it can be
resourced and successfully
implemented
 That the scheme outcomes and
benefits have been assessed including
benefits for the wider community
and/or including those with protected
characteristics under the Equalities Act
2010

Camera options.



1 Fixed CCTV unit £ 800
1 PTZ CCTV unit - £1200

Mandatory




4G Sim card - £480
Power supply infrastructure approx. £172
Day rate - £350

Fixed camera total cost: £1802
OR
PTZ total cost - £2,202

14

And Area Lead Officer (NAME), on (DATE):

Cris Tavares on 9th June 2021

Any additional information (please list any
documents here to be published with the
agenda, or circulated to the Committee):

Title
Raised by (Councillor):

Sara Conway

Ward:

Burnt Oak

Member Request:

Temporary CCTV for Montrose Park

Funding Requested (£):

£25,000 (tbc)

In consultation with (e.g. named Officer):
 Is within the parameters outlined in CIL
statutory and regulatory definitions
 Falls within the CIL Funding Priorities
agreed by the relevant Area
Committee
 Links to priorities in any existing
Council policy or strategy and/or
whether any insight and intelligence
may support the application
 The scheme has considered any
potential impact on the Council’s
Strategic portfolio including those
considered for strategic CIL funding
 The scheme has no ongoing
incremental revenue costs to the
Council
 That the scheme budget is forecast
accurately
 That the scheme deliverability has
been assessed to ensure it can be
resourced and successfully
implemented
 That the scheme outcomes and
benefits have been assessed including
benefits for the wider community
and/or including those with protected
characteristics under the Equalities Act
2010

This bid is focused on the need for an urgent
improvement in the security infrastructure in
Montrose Park for a time-limited period over the
crucial summer months until the Council’s CCTV
review process has been completed and
resources allocated.
A violent and tragic fatal stabbing of a young
person occurred on a sunny Bank Holiday (31
May), in a park full of families, children and young
people.
This has significantly intensified the long-running
community safety concerns since this park was
regenerated. Millions of pounds were spent on a
resource designed to meet the Council’s family
friendly, health and wellbeing objectives - but
without a basic security infrastructure put in place
in an opened up park with facilities for children
and young people. It is unclear why this major
gap wasn’t part of the original work and the
quantity and severity of the incidents that have
occurred there make it essential.
Families are very scared to go there and to let
their children go there. Residents, community
leaders and educators speak of people not going
at all or of being constantly on edge when they
are there. People without outside space do not

15

feel safe to access the park even in the hot
weather.
From 2018-21 Barnet is participating in the
International
Child
Friendly
Cities
and
Communities programme, of which ‘safe and
secure’ was a key themed badge chosen by
children, young people and partnership
organisations. Article 31 of UNICEF’s Rights of
the Child states that every child has the right to
relax and play. This is far from the experience of
children and young people in Burnt Oak and the
Council’s aim to be the most family friendly
borough in London by 2020 has not been realised
for Burnt Oak families.
The failure of community safety infrastructure is
an issue in all 3 Burnt Oak parks but the particular
vulnerability and location of an area within
Montrose Park makes it the absolute priority to
request funding for the summer months.
The amount requested is an approximate figure
(from an expert public realm commissioner) as
the Council have said that they are unable to
provide an amount in the time available before
the funding deadline (the officer who used to
cover this area recently left the council and others
have been on annual leave). It may possibly give
scope for 2 cameras for this park for the summer
months.
And Area Lead Officer (NAME), on (DATE):

Cassie Bridger on 10th June 2021

Any additional information (please list any
documents here to be published with the
agenda, or circulated to the Committee):

I request that the Committee is in private
session for discussion of this funding request
and supporting documents etc.

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS
1.2

The Committee is requested to decide in respect of each application submitted
by Ward Members for Neighbourhood CIL Funding, in line with its terms of
reference set out in Article 7 of the Council’s Constitution.

16

1.3

The Policy & Resources Committee were requested by the Finchley & Golders
Green Area Committee in February and October 2020 to review and clarify the
current CIL Funding Policy and Eligibility Guidelines.

1.4

On 8th February 2021, the Policy & Resources Committee discussed a report
concerning the CIL funding process. It was agreed that each Area Committee
should consider, develop and approve their own CIL funding priorities for each
financial year starting in 2021/22. In addition, it was recommended that
comprehensive guidance be developed for CIL Area Committee Budget and the
Road Safety & Parking Fund to ensure that Members can make informed
decisions when receiving applications for funding.

1.5

At its meeting on 24th May 2021, the Policy and Resources Committee agreed
in respect of Area Committees:




that each Area Committee be allocated £400,000 of Community Infrastructure
Levy (CIL) funding per financial year
to remove the funding limit for each individual Area Committee CIL funded
project (which will operate within the approved annual budget)
the new CIL Funding Application Guidelines and Funding Application Form

1.6

The Area Committees have considered and agreed their priorities for CIL
funding for 2021- 22 and these can be accessed via the links provided in section
6 under Background papers.

1.7

The priorities do not restrict the Area Committees from approving funding
requests that are not agreed priorities. The Area Committee could choose to
approve something that is not an identified priority providing it meets the legal
definition of infrastructure.

1.8

The purpose of the priorities is to enable Area Committees to make informed
decisions about the requests before them. This will allow each Area Committee
to make appropriate decisions on how funding is allocated in line with the
specific infrastructure needs of the area.

1.9

Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) is a planning charge that was introduced
by the Planning Act 2008 Part II to help deliver infrastructure to support the
development in an area. CIL is a standard charge collected from developers on
a rate per square metre basis and the funds raised are spent on infrastructure
to support the development of an area. Part of CIL funding is allocated to the
Neighbourhood Portion and managed by the three Area Committees for
Finchley & Golders Green, Hendon and Chipping Barnet.

1.10 For schemes approved by Area Committee for funding above £50,000 these
are recognised as more complex to deliver. The relevant Executive Director will
ensure the appointment of a senior Council Officer to sponsor the scheme and
the coordination of Council services, ensure the appropriate project
methodology is adhered to, with the scheme set up for a successful delivery. It
is recognised that these schemes may deliver outside of the financial year in
which they are approved.
17

2. ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND NOT RECOMMENDED
2.1

Not applicable; Members of the Council are able to submit applications for
Neighbourhood CIL funding to the Area Committee via Members’ Items. As a
result, the Committee are requested to consider and determine the applications
submitted by Ward Members. Therefore, no other recommendation is provided
from Officers.

3. POST DECISION IMPLEMENTATION
3.1

Post decision implementation depends on the decision taken by the Committee,
and the assessing officer’s recommendation.

4.

IMPLICATIONS OF DECISION

4.1

Corporate Priorities and Performance

4.1.1 The Community Infrastructure Levy funding supports the delivery of the
Corporate Plan objectives: A pleasant, well maintained borough that we protect
and invest in Getting the best out of our parks and improving air quality by
looking after and investing in our greenspaces Investing in community facilities
to support a growing population, such as schools and leisure centres.

4.2

Resources (Finance & Value for Money, Procurement, Staffing, IT,
Property, Sustainability)

4.2.1 Starting in 2021/22, the Area Committee has an allocated budget for
Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) of £400,00 per financial year. This enables
the Area Committees to consider funding a larger number of projects with the
opportunity to unlock greater community benefits.
4.2.2 The Policy & Resources Committee on 24th May 2021 agreed to remove the
funding limit per scheme and that Area Committees operate within their annual
budget. This enables Area Committees to consider using the increased CIL
allocation to fund larger projects with the opportunity to unlock significant
community benefits.

4.3

Social Value

4.3.1 Requests for Area Committee budget funding provides an avenue for Members
to give consideration to funding requests which may have added social value.
4.4

Legal and Constitutional References

4.4.1 Council Constitution, Article 7, Section 7.5 Responsibility for Functions details
that the Area Committee is responsible for determining the allocation of

18

Community Infrastructure Levy funding within the constituency subject to
sufficient of the budget being allocated to the Committee being unspent.
4.4.2 Council Constitution, Article 2 Members of the Council, Section 2.3 states that
a Ward Member will be permitted to have one matter only (with no subitems)
on the agenda for an Area Committee where the Member is submitting a
request for CIL funding to an Area Committee Budget relating to their Ward.
Members’ Items for CIL funding Budget must be submitted 10 clear working
days before the meeting. Items received after that time will only be dealt with at
the meeting if the Chairman agrees they are urgent.
4.5

Risk Management

4.5.1

None in the context of this report.

4.6

Equalities and Diversity

4.6.1 Requests for Funding allow Members of a Committee to bring a wide range of
issues to the attention of a Committee in accordance with the Council’s
Constitution. All of these issues must be considered for their equalities and
diversity implications.
4.7

Corporate Parenting

4.7.1 None in the context of this report.
4.8

Consultation and Engagement

4.8.1 Members consult with Area Committee Lead Officers at an early stage on CIL
Funding applications and where relevant with other departments and services.
This will enable as much supporting information as possible to be included with
applications to enable committees to make an informed decision. Applications
where limited or no consultation has taken place are likely to be deferred or
rejected by committees. This information will enable committees to make
informed decisions. There is no prescribed format for supporting information,
but it is recommended that it is sufficient for the committee to make an informed
decision.

5

Insight

5.1

The Committee may wish to utilise the CIL funding priorities agreed by the Area
Committee as a guide towards determining an application. Officers will work on
collating key information to assist Members in reviewing priorities including
infrastructure needs by constituency area and insight data.

19

6

BACKGROUND PAPERS

6.1

Meeting of the Community Leadership Committee, 24 June 2015, Review of
Area Committees – operations and delegated budgets:
https://barnet.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s24009/Area%20Committees%20
%20Community%20Leadership%20Committee%2025%20June%202015%20
-%20FINAL.pdf

6.2

Policy & Resources Committee, 9 July 2015, ‘Delegating a proportion of
Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) income to the Council’s Area
Committees’
https://barnet.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=692&MId=8346&
Ver=4

6.3

Meeting of the Community Leadership Committee, 8 March 2016 - Area
Committee Funding – Savings from non- Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL)
budgets
http://barnet.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s38413/Area%20Committee%20Fu
nding%20Savings%20from%20non-%20Community%20Infrastructure%20Lev
y%20CIL%20budgets.pdf

6.4

Policy & Resources Committee, 8 February 2021, Review of Community
Infrastructure Levy (CIL) Eligibility Criteria and Guidance
https://barnet.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=692&MId=10200&
Ver=4

6.5

Policy & Resources Committee, 24 May 2021, Review of Community
Infrastructure Levy (CIL) Eligibility Criteria and Guidance
https://barnet.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=692&MId=10201&
Ver=4

6.6

Chipping Barnet Area Committee - CIL Funding Priorities – 21 April 2021
(item 12):
https://barnet.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=711&MId=10126&
Ver=4

6.7

Finchley & Golders Green Area Committee – CIL Funding Priorities, 8 April
2021 (item 12):
https://barnet.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=712&MId=10257&
Ver=4

6.8

Hendon Area Committee – CIL Funding Priorities, 16 March 2021 (item 14):
https://barnet.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=717&MId=10250&
Ver=4

20

Hendon Area Committee
28 June 2021

Title

AGENDA ITEM 12

Heybourne Crescent, NW9 – Speed
Survey Results between Lanacre
Avenue and Great Field

Report of Executive Director Environment
Wards Colindale
Status Public
Urgent No
Key No
Drawing no: BC001965-08_FS_1200-01 Speed Survey
location (Sheet 1 and Sheet 2)
Enclosures BC001965-08_FS_100-01 Speed Survey location Pedestrian
Safety Improvements (Sheet 1 and Sheet 2)
Geoff Mee – Executive Director - Environment
Officer Contact Details geoff.mee@barnet.gov.uk

Summary
This report details the results of a speed survey carried out in Heybourne Crescent, NW9.

Officers Recommendations
1. That the Hendon Area Committee notes the results of the speed survey that
was undertaken on Heybourne Crescent, Edgware.
2. That the Hendon Area Committee proceed with the measures set out in
paragraph 2.12 of this report to install signs and road markings on Heybourne
Crescent at an approximate cost of £1,500 from Hendon Area Committee CIL
funding.

1.

WHY THIS REPORT IS NEEDED

21

1.1

A Member’s Item submitted to the Hendon Area Committee in September 2020 outlined
concerns raised by residents relating to speeding on Heybourne Crescent, Lanacre
Avenue and Great Field, NW9 and requested the introduction of a 20mph zone.

1.2

The item was presented to Hendon Area Committee at the 1st February 2021 meeting,
where Committee unanimously agreed and resolved:
‘to review safety and speeding on Heybourne Crescent, including the junction with
Lanacre for £7,000’
Funding was split as follows:
£5,000 for a speed survey and feasibility study along the section between Great
Field and Field Mead
£2,000 for investigation of “SLOW” markings and signs on the section between
Lanacre Avenue and Great Field

1.3

This report summarises the outcome of the investigation carried out in the section
between Lanacre Avenue and Great Field.

1.4

Due to COVID-19 restrictions an accurate site investigation and pedestrian survey is
required to support a feasibility assessment, this was not possible to carry out during the
lockdown period. Therefore, the speed survey and feasibility study on the section
between Great Field and Field Mead will be presented at a future Committee.

2.

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1

Heybourne Crescent is situated in Colindale and provides access to and from Lanacre
Avenue for residents in the area. The speed limit is 30mph and traffic is primarily local.

2.2

A speed survey was conducted at four sites in Heybourne Crescent, as indicated by the
attached drawing nos. BC001965-08_FS_1200-01, from 26 April 2021 for a week, with
speeds recorded in fifteen-minute intervals for 24 hours a day in the 7-day period. The
proposed locations were confirmed with Ward Councillors prior to installation, and
confirmation was also obtained from them to proceed with the surveys during the current
COVID-19 restrictions. A plan showing the survey locations is enclosed.

2.3

The speed survey provides both the average speed and the 85th percentile speed, the
two figures generally referred to when reporting speed data. The average speed quoted
is the mean speed of all vehicles using the road and the 85th percentile speed is the
speed at which 85 per cent of vehicles travel at or below along a road or street (under
free flow conditions).

2.4

The 85th percentile speed could be characterised as the speed that the majority of
motorists consider a sensible maximum for the road conditions. Conditions are usually
considered acceptable if the 85th percentile speed is not in excess of the signed speed
limit by 5mph or more.

22

2.5

The average speeds and 85th percentile speeds that were recorded in Heybourne
Crescent during the 7-day survey in each direction are summarised in Table 1:

Table 1 – Speed Survey Results

Road

Heybourne Crescent
(Site 1)

Heybourne Crescent
(Site 2)

Heybourne Crescent
(Site 3)

Heybourne Crescent
(Site 4)

Direction

Average
Speed
(mph)

85th
Percentile
Speed
(mph)

Eastbound

18.5

21.9

Westbound

18.8

22.3

Eastbound

19.1

22.5

Westbound

19.4

23.1

Northbound

18.2

21.9

Southbound

19.1

23.0

Northbound

17.8

21.3

Southbound

18.3

21.9

2.6

At Site 1 during the week surveyed 3.9% of all vehicles travelling eastbound were
recorded as exceeding the 30mph speed limit and 0.2% exceeded 35mph (the usual
enforceable threshold). In the westbound direction 4.8% exceeded the speed limit and
0.2% exceeded 35mph.

2.7

At Site 2 during the week surveyed 4.4% of all vehicles travelling eastbound were
recorded as exceeding the 30mph speed limit and 0.2% exceeded 35mph (the usual
enforceable threshold). In the westbound direction 6.6% exceeded the speed limit and
0.1% exceeded 35mph.

2.8

At Site 3 during the week surveyed 4.0% of all vehicles travelling northbound were
recorded as exceeding the 30mph speed limit and 0.1% exceeded 35mph (the usual
enforceable threshold). In the southbound direction 6.9% exceeded the speed limit and
0.1% exceeded 35mph.

2.9

At Site 4 during the week surveyed 2.6% of all vehicles travelling northbound were
recorded as exceeding the 30mph speed limit and 0% exceeded 35mph (the usual

23

enforceable threshold). In the southbound direction 3.8% exceeded the speed limit and
0.1% exceeded 35mph.
2.10
2.11

2.12

Personal Injury Collision Data from January 2018 to May 2020 (the most recent data
currently available) were analysed in relation to this location. No accidents were recorded
on Heybourne Crescent.
It is worth noting that this survey was carried out during the COVID-19 pandemic, with
some restrictions to people movements in place but with schools fully operational and
that traffic volumes were likely lower than usual. However, this would have a negligible
effect on traffic speeds. If anything, speeds would be above average due to lessened
congestion
.
Although results of the speed survey didn’t show significant high speed, given the
concerns of residents and that site investigation showed a number of pedestrians in the
area, especially children, signage and road markings are recommended between
Lanacre Avenue and Great Field, as shown on the drawing attached nos. BC00196508_FS_100-01. The cost of these works will be approximately £1,500.

3.

ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND NOT RECOMMENDED

3.1

The only other option at this stage is not to proceed with the proposed improvements;
however, this will not address the original concerns raised by the residents and
councillor.

4.

POST DECISION IMPLEMENTATION

4.1

Should the Committee agree with the recommendations in this report, the proposed
measures would be implemented at agreed locations.

5.

IMPLICATIONS OF DECISION

5.1

Corporate Priorities and Performance

5.1.1 The proposals here will particularly help to address the Corporate Plan delivery
objectives of “a clean and attractive environment, with well-maintained roads and
pavements, flowing traffic” and “a responsible approach to regeneration, with thousands
of new homes built” by helping residents to feel confident moving around their local area
on foot, and in a vehicle and contribute to reduced congestion.
5.2

Resources (Finance & Value for Money, Procurement, Staffing, IT, Property,
Sustainability)

5.2.1 Additional funding estimated at £1,500 would be required should the recommended
measures be agreed from the Hendon Area Committee CIL funding allocation.
5.3

Social Value

5.3.1 None in the context of this report.
5.4

Legal and Constitutional References

24

5.4.1 The Traffic Management Act 2004 places an obligation on authorities to ensure the
expeditious movement of traffic on their road network. Authorities are required to make
arrangements as they consider appropriate for planning and carrying out the action to be
taken in performing this duty.
5.4.2 The Council as the Highway Authority has the necessary legal powers to introduce traffic
signs and road markings in the interest of safety under the Road Traffic Regulation Act
1984 and subsidiary regulations made under that Act.
5.4.3 The terms of reference for the Hendon Area Committees under Article 7 of the Council’s
Constitution includes responsibility for all constituency specific matters relating to the
street scene including parking, road safety, transport, allotments, parks and trees,
consider matters referred from Residents Forums and determine how they are to be
taken forward in consultation with the relevant Area Committee Lead Officer and subject
to any Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) funding requirement being agreed by the
Committee and determine the allocation of CIL funding within the constituency subject to
sufficient of the budget allocated to the committee being unspent
5.5

Risk Management

5.5.1 Not applicable in the context of this report
5.6

Equalities and Diversity

5.6.1 The 2010 Equality Act outlines the provisions of the Public Sector Equalities Duty which
requires Public Bodies to have due regard to the need to:
 eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation and other
conduct prohibited by the Equality Act 2010
 advance equality of opportunity between people from different groups
 foster good relations between people from different groups
5.6.2 The relevant protected characteristics are: gender, race, disability, age, gender
reassignment, pregnancy and maternity, religion and belief, and sexual orientation.
5.6.3 The broad purpose of this duty is to integrate considerations of equality into day to day
business and keep them under review in decision making, the design of policies and the
delivery of services. It is not considered that the decision to agree with the
recommendations in this report will affect those with protected characteristics under the
Equality Act 2010.
5.7

Corporate Parenting

5.7.1 Not applicable in the context of this report.
5.8

Consultation and Engagement

5.8.1 If the scheme is not progressed no Consultation will be required.
5.9

Insight

5.9.1 Not applicable in the context of this report.

25

6.

BACKGROUND PAPERS

6.1

Hendon Area Committee February 2021, please refer to item 10:
https://barnet.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=717&MID=10249

6.2

Hendon Area Committee September 2020, please refer to item 10
https://barnetintranet.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=717&MId=10248&Ver
=4

26

BUS
STOP

This product includes mapping data licensed from Ordinance
Survey with the permission of the Controller of
Her Majesty's Stationery Office.
© Crown copyright and database right 2021. All rights reserved.
London Borough of Barnet. Licence No 100017674

HEYBOURNE CRESCENT
ROAD SAFETY IMPROVEMENTS

BUS
STOP

GENERAL ARRANGEMENT - SHEET 1

27
BC/001965-08_FS_100-01

This page is intentionally left blank

BUS
STOP

This product includes mapping data licensed from Ordinance
Survey with the permission of the Controller of
Her Majesty's Stationery Office.
© Crown copyright and database right 2021. All rights reserved.
London Borough of Barnet. Licence No 100017674

HEYBOURNE CRESCENT
ROAD SAFETY IMPROVEMENTS
GENERAL ARRANGEMENT - SHEET 2

29
BC/001965-08_FS_100-01

This page is intentionally left blank

SITE 4

Northbound Southbound

Mean speed
(mph)
HE Y BOUR
NE C RESCE NT

4

BUS
STOP

85th Percentile
speed
(mph)

This product includes mapping data licensed from Ordinance
Survey with the permission of the Controller of
Her Majesty's Stationery Office.
© Crown copyright and database right 2021. All rights reserved.
London Borough of Barnet. Licence No 100017674

HEYBOURNE CRESCENT
SPEED SURVEY

BUS
STOP

GENERAL ARRANGEMENT - SHEET 1

31
BC/001965-08_FS_1200-01

This page is intentionally left blank

SITE 1

Eastbound

Westbound

Mean speed
(mph)
85th Percentile
speed
(mph)

SITE 2

Eastbound

HEY BO UR

NE CRESCE NT

Westbound

BUS
STOP

Mean speed
(mph)
85th Percentile
speed
(mph)

This product includes mapping data licensed from Ordinance
Survey with the permission of the Controller of
Her Majesty's Stationery Office.
© Crown copyright and database right 2021. All rights reserved.
London Borough of Barnet. Licence No 100017674

HEY BO U
R NE C R ES C ENT

2

1
HEYBOURNE CRESCENT
SPEED SURVEY

SITE 3

Northbound Southbound

GENERAL ARRANGEMENT - SHEET 2

Mean speed
(mph)

33

3

85th Percentile
speed
(mph)

BC/001965-08_FS_1200-01

This page is intentionally left blank

AGENDA ITEM 13

Hendon Area Committee
28 June 2021

Title Montrose Avenue - Speed Surveys
Report of Executive Director for Environment
Wards Burnt Oak
Status Public
Urgent No
Key No
Enclosures
Officer Contact Details

Drawing no: BC001965_05_FS_100-01 Speed Survey
location
Geoff Mee – Executive Director - Environment
Geoff.Mee@barnet.gov.uk

Summary
This report details the results of a speed survey carried out in Montrose Avenue

Recommendations
1. That the Hendon Area Committee notes the results of the speed survey that was
undertaken on Montrose Avenue, HA8 Burnt Oak.
2. That the Hendon Area Committee notes that the Executive Director,
Environment approves the recommendation that no further action is taken at
this time in Montrose Avenue, Burnt Oak.

1.

WHY THIS REPORT IS NEEDED

1.1

A Members Item submitted to the Hendon Area Committee in September 2020
outlined concerns relating to speeding on Montrose Avenue HA8, between
Burnt Oak Broadway-A5 and Watling Avenue.
35

1.2

Following discussion of the item, the Hendon Area Committee unanimously
agreed funding of £2,000 to carry out a speed survey.

1.3

This report summarises the outcome of the speed survey undertaken.

2.

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1

Montrose Avenue is situated between A5-Burnt Oak Broadway and Watling
Avenue in Burnt Oak, HA8. The speed limit on Montrose Avenue is 30mph and
it is a very trafficked road by vehicles wishing to reach Mill Hill Broadway, Brent
Cross Shopping Centre and Edgware Town Centre via the A5, and also by
pedestrians wishing to visit the shops in the local High Street, Unitas Youth
Zone and Burnt Oak Leisure Centre. There are two public parks along Montrose
Avenue – Silkstream Park and Montrose Park.

2.2

A speed survey was conducted at three sites on Montrose Avenue from 15
March 2021 for a week, with speeds recorded in fifteen-minute intervals for 24
hours a day in the 7-day period. The proposed locations were confirmed with
Ward Councillors prior to installation, and to confirm they were happy to
proceed with the surveys during the present COVID-19 restrictions. A plan
showing the survey locations is enclosed.

2.3

The speed survey provides both the average speed and the 85th percentile
speed, the two figures generally referred to when reporting speed data. The
average speed quoted is the mean speed of all vehicles using the road and the
85th percentile speed is the speed at which 85 per cent of vehicles travel at or
below along a road or street (under free flow conditions).

2.4

The 85th percentile speed could be characterised as the speed that the majority
of motorists consider a sensible maximum for the road conditions. Conditions
are usually considered acceptable if the 85th percentile speed is not in excess
of the signed speed limit by 5mph or more.

2.5

The average speeds and 85th percentile speeds that were recorded in
Montrose Avenue during the 7-day survey in each direction are
summarised in Table 1:

36

Table 1 – Speed Survey Results
Road

Direction

Mean speed (mph)

85th Percentile
Speed (mph)

Montrose Avenue
Site 1
(Closer to St-Alphage
Walk)

Northbound

22.4

27.3

Southbound

22.5

26.8

Montrose Avenue
Site 2
(Closer to The Green
Way)

Northbound

22.9

27.8

Southbound

20.9

25.5

Montrose Avenue
Site 3
(closer to Thirleby
Road)

Northbound

22.2

25.9

Southbound

21.6

26.2

2.6

At Site 1, during the 7-day survey 6.3% of all vehicles travelling northbound
were recorded as exceeding the 30mph speed limit and 1.3% exceeded 35mph
(the usual enforceable threshold). In the southbound direction 5.28% exceeded
the speed limit 30mph and 1.05% exceeded 35mph.

2.7

At Site 2, during the 7-day survey 8.2% of all vehicles travelling northbound
were recorded as exceeding the 30mph speed limit and 2.29% exceeded
35mph (the usual enforceable threshold). In the southbound direction 4.0%
exceeded the speed limit 30mph and 1.41% exceeded 35mph.

2.8

At Site 3, during the 7-day survey 3.2% of all vehicles travelling northbound
were recorded as exceeding the 30mph speed limit and 0.49% exceeded
35mph (the usual enforceable threshold). In the southbound direction 4.0%
exceeded the 30mph speed limit and 0.74% exceeded 35mph.

2.9

It is worth noting that this survey was carried out during the national COVID
lockdown with schools fully operational and that traffic volumes were likely
lower than usual. However, this would have a negligible effect on traffic speeds.
If anything, speeds would be above average due to lessened congestion.

2.10

The Personal Injury Accident Data between September 2018 and November
2020 have been analysed, these are the most recent data currently available
and they show six recorded personal injury accidents in Montrose Avenue. All
six accidents are classified as ‘slight’ and are recorded as occurring between
A5 Burnt Oak Broadway and Watling Avenue. Unfortunately, we only have
limited information about these incidents, however two of them appear to have
involve Pedal cycles closer to The Greenway junction with Montrose Avenue
37

and it is not clear whether speeding was a contributory factor in this incident.
There was one fatal accident happened in April 2017 on Montrose Avenue near
its junction with A5 involving a pedestrian, however there is no further
information regarding this incident..
2.11

In view of the results of the speed survey, it is recommended not to propose
further investigation of any additional speed reduction measures at this current
time.

3.

ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND NOT RECOMMENDED

3.1

Alternative options are not being considered at this time following speed survey
and accident investigation analysis

4.

POST DECISION IMPLEMENTATION

4.1

Should the Committee agree with the recommendations in this report, no further
action will be taken.

5.

IMPLICATIONS OF DECISION

5.1

Corporate Priorities and Performance

5.1.1 The proposals here will particularly help to address the Corporate Plan delivery
objectives of “a clean and attractive environment, with well-maintained roads
and pavements, flowing traffic” and “a responsible approach to regeneration,
with thousands of new homes built” by helping residents to feel confident
moving around their local area on foot, and in a vehicle and contribute to
reduced congestion.
5.2

Resources (Finance & Value for Money, Procurement, Staffing, IT,
Property, Sustainability)

5.2.1 As the recommendation is not to proceed with any improvements at this
location, no additional funding is required from The Hendon Area Committee
CIL funding.
5.3

Social Value

5.3.1 None in the context of this report.
5.4

Legal and Constitutional References

5.4.1 Council’s Constitution Article 7, Area Committee Terms of Reference, Part 1
states that Area Committees may take decisions within their terms of reference
provided it is not contrary to council policy and can discharge various functions,
with specific matters relating to the street scene including parking, road safety,
transport, allotments, parks and trees, within the boundaries of their areas in
accordance with Council policy and within budget.
5.5

Risk Management
38

5.5.1 Not applicable in the context of this report
5.6

Equalities and Diversity

5.6.1 The 2010 Equality Act outlines the provisions of the Public-Sector Equalities
Duty which requires Public Bodies to have due regard to the need to:
• eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation and
other conduct prohibited by the Equality Act 2010
• advance equality of opportunity between people from different groups
• foster good relations between people from different groups
5.6.2 The relevant protected characteristics are: gender, race, disability, age, gender
reassignment, pregnancy and maternity, religion and belief, and sexual
orientation.
5.6.3 The broad purpose of this duty is to integrate considerations of equality into day
to day business and keep them under review in decision making, the design of
policies and the delivery of services. It is not considered that the decision to
agree with the recommendations in this report will affect those with protected
characteristics under the Equality Act 2010.
5.7

Corporate Parenting

5.7.1 Not applicable in the context of this report.
5.8

Consultation and Engagement

5.8.1 If the scheme is not progressed no Consultation will be required.
5.9

Insight

5.9.1 Not applicable in the context of this report.
6.

BACKGROUND PAPERS

6.1

Hendon Area Committee15 September 2020, please refer to item 11:
https://barnetintranet.moderngov.co.uk/documents/g10248/Printed%20minute
s%2015th-Sep-2020%2018.00%20Hendon%20Area%20Committee.pdf?T=1

39

This page is intentionally left blank

SPEED SURVEY LOCATION

SITE

3

TE
SI
2

This product includes mapping data licensed from Ordinance
Survey with the permission of the Controller of
Her Majesty's Stationery Office.
© Crown copyright and database right 2021. All rights reserved.
London Borough of Barnet. Licence No 100017674

MONTROSE AVENUE

E

T
SI

SPEED SURVEY

1

41

BC/001965_05_FS_100_01
Speed Survey

This page is intentionally left blank

AGENDA ITEM 14

Hendon Area Committee
28 June 2021
Title

Shirehall Lane, NW4 – Speed Survey
Results

Report of Executive Director Environment
Wards West Hendon
Status Public
Urgent No
Key No
Enclosures Drawing no: BC001965-01_FS_100
Geoff Mee – Executive Director - Environment
Officer Contact Details

geoff.mee@barnet.gov.uk

Summary
This report details the results of a speed survey carried out in Shirehall Lane, West Hendon
NW4

Officers Recommendations
1. That the Hendon Area Committee notes the results of the speed survey that
was undertaken on Shirehall Lane, West Hendon, NW4.
2. That the Hendon Area Committee notes the Executive Director’s decision that
no further action is taken at this time in Shirehall Lane, West Hendon.

1.

WHY THIS REPORT IS NEEDED

1.1

A Members Item submitted to the Hendon Area Committee in September 2020 outlined
concerns relating to speeding on Shirehall lane, near Hasmonean Primary School.

43

1.2

Following discussion of the item, the Hendon Area Committee unanimously agreed the
requested £2,000 to carry out a speed survey on Shirehall Lane.

1.3

This report summarises the outcome of the speed survey undertaken.

2.

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1

Shirehall Lane is situated in West Hendon and joins Brent Street to the A41-Hendon Way
and the A406 - North Circular. It is also a major link to reach Brent Cross Shopping
Centre and its amenities.

2.2

Hasmonean Nursery and Primary schools and Hendon Park are located on Shirehall
Lane and the speed limit along the road is 30mph.

2.3

A speed survey was conducted on Shirehall Lane at 1 site identified on the Drawing from
23 April 2021 for one week, with speeds recorded in fifteen-minute intervals for 24 hours
a day in the 7-day period. The proposed location was confirmed with Ward Councillors
prior to installation, and also confirmation was obtained from them that they were happy
to proceed with the survey during the present COVID-19 restrictions: schools fully
operational but shops closed. Traffic volumes were accordingly likely to be lower than
normal. This, however, would have a negligible effect on traffic speeds with in fact
speeds being above average due to lessened congestion.

2.4

The speed survey provides both the average speed and the 85th percentile speed, the
two figures generally referred to when reporting speed data. The average speed quoted
is the mean speed of all vehicles using the road and the 85th percentile speed is the
speed at which 85 per cent of vehicles travel at or below along a road or street (under
free flow conditions).

2.5

The 85th percentile speed could be characterised as the speed that most motorists
consider a sensible maximum for the road conditions. Conditions are usually considered
acceptable if the 85th percentile speed is not in excess of the signed speed limit by 5mph
or more.

2.6

The average speeds and 85th percentile speeds that were recorded in Shirehall Lane
during the 7-day survey in each direction are summarised as follows:
Table 1 – Speed Survey Results

Road

Shirehall Lane

Direction

Average
Speed
(mph)

85th
Percentile
Speed
(mph)

Northbound

23

29

Southbound

23

29

44

2.7

During the week surveyed 11.6% of all vehicles travelling northbound were recorded as
exceeding the 30mph speed limit and 2.9% exceeded 35mph (the usual enforceable
threshold). In the southbound direction 12.3% exceeded the speed limit and 3.2%
exceeded 35mph.

2.8

Personal Injury Collision Data from January 2018 to May 2020 was analysed in relation
to this location (the most recent data currently available). No incidents were recorded on
Shirehall Lane.

2.9

In view of the results of the speed survey, it is not proposed to progress the investigation
of any additional speed reduction measures at this current time.

3.

ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND NOT RECOMMENDED

3.1

The traffic survey did not reveal a significant prevalence of speeding near Hasmonean
Primary School. No further action is recommended.

4.

POST DECISION IMPLEMENTATION

4.1

Should the Committee agree with the recommendations in this report, no further action
will be taken.

5.

IMPLICATIONS OF DECISION

5.1

Corporate Priorities and Performance
5.1.1 The proposals here will particularly help to address the Barnet 2024 Corporate Plan
delivery objectives of “a clean and attractive environment, with well-maintained roads
and pavements, flowing traffic” and “a responsible approach to regeneration, with
thousands of new homes built” by helping residents to feel confident moving around
their local area on foot, and in a vehicle and contribute to reduced congestion.

5.2

Resources (Finance & Value for Money, Procurement, Staffing, IT, Property,
Sustainability)
5.2.1 As the recommendation is not to proceed with any improvements at this location, no
additional funding is required from The Hendon Area Committee CIL funding.

5.3

Legal and Constitutional References
5.3.1 Council’s Constitution Article 7, Area Committee Terms of Reference, Part 1 states
that Area Committees may take decisions within their terms of reference provided it is
not contrary to council policy and can discharge various functions, with specific
matters relating to the street scene including parking, road safety, transport,
allotments, parks and trees, within the boundaries of their areas in accordance with
Council policy and within budget.

45

5.4

Insight
5.4.1 Not applicable in the context of this report.

5.5

Social Value
5.5.1 None in the context of this report.

5.6

Risk Management
5.6.1

5.7

Not applicable in the context of this report

Equalities and Diversity
5.7.1 The 2010 Equality Act outlines the provisions of the Public Sector Equalities Duty
which requires Public Bodies to have due regard to the need to:
 eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation and other
conduct prohibited by the Equality Act 2010
 advance equality of opportunity between people from different groups
 foster good relations between people from different groups
5.7.2 The relevant protected characteristics are: gender, race, disability, age, gender
reassignment, pregnancy and maternity, religion and belief, and sexual orientation.
5.7.3 The broad purpose of this duty is to integrate considerations of equality into day to
day business and keep them under review in decision making, the design of policies
and the delivery of services. It is not considered that the decision to agree with the
recommendations in this report will affect those with protected characteristics under
the Equality Act 2010.

5.8

Corporate Parenting
5.8.1 Not applicable in the context of this report.

5.9

Consultation and Engagement
5.9.1 If the scheme is not progressed no Consultation will be required.

6.

BACKGROUND PAPERS

6.1

Hendon Area Committee September 2020, please refer to item 10:
https://barnet.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=717&MId=10248&Ver=4

46

SITE 1

Northbound Southbound

Mean speed
(mph)
85th Percentile
speed
(mph)

1
This product includes mapping data licensed from Ordinance
Survey with the permission of the Controller of
Her Majesty's Stationery Office.
© Crown copyright and database right 2018. All rights reserved.
London Borough of Barnet. Licence No 100017674

SHIREHALL LANE
SPEED SURVEY

47
BC/001965-01_FS_100-01

This page is intentionally left blank

AGENDA ITEM 15

Hendon Area Committee
28 June 2021

Title

High Street, NW7 – Feasibility study
for traffic management

Report of Executive Director Environment
Wards Mill Hill
Status Public
Urgent No
Key No
Enclosures

Appendix 1 – BC/001965-03_FS_100-01 Rev2

Officer Contact Details Geoff Mee – Executive Director Environment

Summary
This report details the results of a feasibility study for the traffic management on High Street,
NW7, Mill Hill.

Officers Recommendations
That the Hendon Area Committee:
1. Notes the results of the feasibility study undertaken on High Street, NW7, as
outlined in this report and the appendix to this report.
2. Agrees that option o as detailed in 2.12 – 2.17 and outlined in Appendix 1Drawing No. BC/001965-03_FS_100-01 Rev2 to be progressed for consideration.
3. Authorises the Executive Director Environment to carry out a statutory
consultation on the final approved proposal.
4. That subject to no objections being received to the consultation, referred to in
recommendation 3, authorises the Executive Director Environment to introduce
the approved proposal.

49

5. Agrees that if objections are received as a result of the consultation, referred to
in recommendation 3, the Executive Director Environment will in consultation
with the relevant Ward Councillors consider those objections and determine
whether the agreed proposals should be implemented or not, and if so, with or
without modification.
6. Approves to allocate the funding of £48,635 from NCIL Area Committee budget.
S106 funding of £26,715 has been identified and agreed by Executive Director,
Environment to be allocated for the remaining cost. Total estimated scheme
cost is £75,350 to consult, design and introduce the approved proposals.

1.

WHY THIS REPORT IS NEEDED

1.1

During the Hendon Area Committee on 15th September 2020, Councillor Val Duschinsky
introduced her Member’s Item, to address the following traffic management issues for High
Street, NW7.
• Improve conflict on two ways traffic flows and reducing the traffic volume travelling on
The High Street, NW7. There are ongoing issues with the damaging of side mirrors,
scratches and dents on vehicles belonging to residents caused by the traffic using High
Street NW7. This is due to the narrowness of the road width especially with current traffic
travelling in both directions and residents relying on the roadside space to park their
vehicles street.
• There are also currently issues with vehicles parking at the Will Grove junction with High
Street NW7, Milespit Hill junction with The Ridgeway and on Milespit Hill and around the
pond.
• Lack of pavement creating issues for students from The Mount, Mill Hill International
walking to Wills Grove or vice versa via High Street, NW7 to gain access to their school
boarding facility

1.2

Following discussion of the item, the Hendon Area Committee unanimously agreed and
resolved:
‘To allocate funding of up to £5,000 from this year’s CIL Area Committee budget, to
undertake a feasibility study which would include a traffic survey and tracking of large
vehicles (e.g. refuse vehicles) which might affect the green area including looking at:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

1.3

One-way system along Milespit Hill between High Street and Hollies End:
High Street and Milespit Hill west side to be for traffic travelling northbound
Milespit east side to be for traffic travelling southbound
Existing pond to act as mini-roundabout
Double yellow lines on main corners and at junctions of Milespit Hill and of High Street with
The Ridgeway
Outside no. 2 Angel Cottage: footway cannot be widened but signs and road markings
could help pedestrians and double yellow lines could prevent parking
Signs to restrict HGV to drive through High Street and Milespit Hill
This report details the investigation carried out to address the above request of traffic
survey and tracking of large vehicles including looking at one-way system along Milespit
Hill between High Street NW7 and Hollies End, the existing pond as a mini roundabout.
50

2.

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS
The investigation concentrates on looking at the traffic flow along Milespit Hill between
High Street and Hollies End and is informed by:
i)
Site observation
ii)
Traffic Survey
iii)
Collison Data

Ward Councillor was consulted and agreed traffic survey to be carried out to track vehicles
movements in order to progress with the feasibility study.
Site Observation
2.1

High Street, NW7 is a residential road adjoining Wills Grove on the north west and Milespit
Hill on the south west direction. It is a 20mph speed limit road.

2.2

Milespit Hill connects to High Street, NW7 on the west side split road and The Ridgeway
on the east side split road. It is mainly residential in character. It is subject to 30mph speed
limit on the section south of The Mount, Mill Hill International School and 20mph speed
limit on the section north of The Mount, Mill Hill International School.

2.3

High Street, NW7 and Milespit Hill are roads with street lighting. Existing traffic
signs indicate restriction of no waiting for 5t or above heavy good vehicles and buses
from 6.30pm to midnight and midnight to 8.00am on High Street, NW7 and within the
scheme extent.

2.4

Most of the properties on High Street do not have driveways and residents rely on
roadside space to park their vehicles.

2.5

The carriageway surfacing within the extent of the site is generally not in a good condition,
this is however not within the scope of this feasibility study. If carriageway surfacing to be
addressed, additional funding will be required.
Traffic Survey

2.6

Manual classified vehicles counts were carried out on the 16th March 2021 on High Street,
NW7 and a section of Milespit Hill. The survey was conducted for 12 hours from 7am to
7pm to track vehicles movements with vehicle category classification.

2.7

On the 6th and 8th May, additional surveys were conducted for 24 hours for one weekday
and a day on weekend to track vehicles movement. This is to identify the vehicle category
classification on High Street, NW7 and a small section of Milespit Hill within the scheme
extent. Locations of the surveys are shown on Figure 1 below.

51

Figure 1: Traffic survey location plan
2.8

The manual classified vehicles count results are shown on the Table 1 below
Table 1
Vehicles Classification
Direction

Date/Period

A to E
(High Street, NW7
to Milespit Hill)

Tues, 16 March 2021
(Period: 0700 -1900)
Thurs, 6 May 2021
(Period: 24 hours)
Date: Sat, 8 May 2021
(period: 24 hours)
Tues, 16 March 2021
(Period: 0700 -1900)
Thurs, 6 May 2021
(Period: 24 hours)
Date: Sat, 8 May 2021
(period: 24 hours)
Tues, 16 March 2021
(Period: 0700 -1900)
Thurs, 6 May 2021
(Period: 24 hours)
Date: Sat, 8 May 2021
(period: 24 hours)

E to A
(Milespit Hill to High
Street, NW7)

B to D
(The Ridgeway
junction with
Milespit Hill to
Milespit Hill)

Cars
126

Light Good
Vehicles (LGV)
11

Heavy Good
Vehicles (HGV)
0

Coaches and
buses (PSV)
0

162

26

6

1

118

6

0

0

250

15

4

1

306

36

4

0

157

16

0

0

63

14

2

0

75

10

0

0

50

3

0

0

52

D to B
(Milespit Hill to The
Ridgeway junction
with Milespit Hill)

B to E
(The Ridgeway
junction with
Milespit Hill to
Milespit Hill)
E to B
(Milespit Hill to The
Ridgeway junction
with Milespit Hill)

C to D
(The Ridgeway
junction with
Milespit Hill to
Milespit Hill)
D to C
(Milespit Hill to The
Ridgeway junction
with Milespit Hill)

C to E
(The Ridgeway
junction with
Milespit Hill to
Milespit Hill)
E to C
(Milespit Hill to The
Ridgeway junction
with Milespit Hill)

Tues, 16 March 2021
(Period: 0700 -1900)
Thurs, 6 May 2021
(Period: 24 hours)
Date: Sat, 8 May 2021
(period: 24 hours)
Tues, 16 March 2021
(Period: 0700 -1900)
Thurs, 6 May 2021
(Period: 24 hours)
Date: Sat, 8 May 2021
(period: 24 hours)
Tues, 16 March 2021
(Period: 0700 -1900)
Thurs, 6 May 2021
(Period: 24 hours)
Date: Sat, 8 May 2021
(period: 24 hours)
Tues, 16 March 2021
(Period: 0700 -1900)
Thurs, 6 May 2021
(Period: 24 hours)
Date: Sat, 8 May 2021
(period: 24 hours)
Tues, 16 March 2021
(Period: 0700 -1900)
Thurs, 6 May 2021
(Period: 24 hours)
Date: Sat, 8 May 2021
(period: 24 hours)
Tues, 16 March 2021
(Period: 0700 -1900)
Thurs, 6 May 2021
(Period: 24 hours)
Date: Sat, 8 May 2021
(period: 24 hours)
Tues, 16 March 2021
(Period: 0700 -1900)
Thurs, 6 May 2021
(Period: 24 hours)
Date: Sat, 8 May 2021
(period: 24 hours)

28

14

0

0

59

11

3

1

25

4

0

0

14

0

0

0

12

0

0

0

6

1

0

0

37

7

1

0

82

17

2

1

10

3

0

0

289

31

7

4

329

50

3

4

205

16

4

0

162

17

4

0

182

15

2

0

149

9

0

0

30

5

0

0

79

6

0

1

27

0

0

0

125

10

0

0

126

8

1

0

50

3

2

0

2.9

The traffic survey results for 2 weekdays and 1 day on the weekend showed small volumes
of heavy good vehicles (HGVs) and public service vehicles (PSVs) travelled on High Street,
NW7 in both directions (highlighted in red in Table 1). A total of 5 HGVs and PSVs were
recorded on Tuesday 16th March 2021, a total of 11 HGVs and PSVs were recorded on
Thursday 6th May 2021 and none on Saturday 8th May 2021.

2.10

The majority of traffic travelled on High Street, NW7 in both directions were cars and light
good vehicles less than 3.5t.

Collision Data
2.11

The Collision Data from TfL database for the last five years up to December 2020 (the
most recent data available from TFL) showed no records of any personal injury accident
on High Street, NW7 and the section of Milespit Hill included in this study.

53

Feasibility and proposal
2.12 A one-way system is proposed along Milespit Hill between High Street and Hollies End to
address the traffic management on High Street, NW7. The one-way northbound is
proposed on High Street and Milespit Hill between Wills Grove and Hollies End. The oneway southbound is on the eastern side Milespit Hill, from the pond to the junction where it
meets Milespit Hill opposite the property Wychwood. The existing pond would act as a mini
roundabout. The proposed one-way system is shown on Drawing BC/001965-03_FS_10001 Rev1 and the advantages and disadvantages of the proposal are shown in Table 2.
Table 2 – Proposed One-way system
•

•

Brief Description
One-way system along
Milespit Hill between
High Street NW7 and
Berry Cottages by the
junction of Hollies End.

Advantage /Disadvantage

Advantages
•
•
•

The pond acted as a mini
roundabout.

Improve traffic flow on High Street NW7.
Reduce conflict on vehicles travelling on High Street NW7 due
to limited road width with parked vehicles.
Will help students from The Mount, Mill Hill International to
have better anticipation of the travelling traffic in one direction
rather than both directions when walking to Wills Grove or vice
versa via High Street, NW7 to gain access to their school
boarding facility

Disadvantages
•

•

Proposed one-way system will require illuminated traffic signs
and posts to be installed on site to direct traffic as required by
the design standard and regulation although it is within the
conservation area.
As per traffic survey results, the number of large vehicles using
High Street NW7 if one-way system is implemented will
increase slightly (highlighted in black on Table 1).

2.13

A traffic sign showing “Unsuitable for heavy goods vehicles” for right turning vehicles at
the “mini-roundabout” will be proposed on the existing lamp column opposite property no.
6 Nicholls Armshouses, Millspit Hill.

2.14

Double yellow lines are proposed at Will Grove junction with High Street NW7, Milespit Hill
junction with The Ridgeway and on Milespit Hill, around the pond near the junction with
Hollies End. The double yellow lines proposed at all these junctions and around the bends
will improve visibility, enhance safety and prevent further obstructive parking.

2.15

One-way system arrows and “No entry” road markings will be installed on site to guide
travelling traffic.

2.16

Minor modification to kerb alignment on Milespit Hill opposite Hollies End junction is
required to provide a smoother turning movement for vehicles turning right if one-way
system is implemented.

2.17 Currently the refuse vehicles are travelling in the southbound direction through High Street,

54

NW7 for refuse collection. The Waste Management Team will be consulted
during the consultation. If the proposed one-way system is implemented, an alternative
refuse collection route will be required on High Street, NW7 and at Milespit Hill.

3.

ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND NOT RECOMMENDED

3.1

Alternative option considered, but not recommended is the one-way system between High
Street, NW7 and the boundary of 2 Angel cottage and 1 Nicholls Almshouses. This option
is not viable due to the site constraint and safety concerns for installing illuminated
traffic signs in front of the properties in order to comply with design standard and regulation.

3.2

Another option considered but not recommended is to introduce the proposed one way
system and include a set of speed cushions on High Street NW7. This proposal was not
progressed following consideration that the site is within conservation area and a 20mph
Zone is in place. Parking on both sides of the road would make it difficult for vehicles to
drive over the cushions. However, the speed of the site might need to be monitored after
the implementation of the one-way system to verify whether there will be an increase of
speed which might justify the installation of speed cushions.

3.3

In addition to the options set out above, the other option is not to proceed with any of the
proposed improvements. However, this will not address the original concern raised by
Ward Councillor to address traffic management issue at High Street NW7.

4.

POST DECISION IMPLEMENTATION

4.1

Following the Hendon Area Committee’s decision and agreement subject to funding,
consultation to ward members, residents living near the site, waste management team
and emergency services would be undertaken. Detailed design of the proposal to be
progressed and implementation would follow once any issue has been considered and
resolved where possible subject to funding being made available.

5.

IMPLICATIONS OF DECISION

5.1

Corporate Priorities and Performance

5.1.1

The proposals will help to address the Corporate Plan delivery objectives of “a clean and
attractive environment, with well-maintained roads and pavements, flowing traffic” and “a
responsible approach to regeneration, with thousands of new homes built” by helping
residents and particularly school children to feel confident moving around their local area
on foot, and contribute to reduced congestion. The scheme will also impact on the health
and wellbeing needs of the local population as identified in Barnet’s Joint Strategic Needs
Assessment.

5.1.2 The proposals also help create an environment that encourages an active lifestyle and
reduces obesity by promoting walking and other sustainable modes of travel so helping to
deliver active travel opportunities as identified in the Health and Wellbeing Strategy for
children and the population generally.
5.1.3 The Joint Strategic Needs also identifies that encouraging travel by foot, bicycle or public

55

transport could drive good lifestyle behaviours and reduced demand for health and social
care services.
5.2

Resources (Finance & Value for Money, Procurement, Staffing, IT, Property,
Sustainability)

5.2.1 London Highways Maintenance and Project Framework (LHMP) North Area schedule of
rates have been used to carry out a preliminary high-level cost estimate for this
recommendation as shown in Table 3. This will need to be refined by LHMP upon
completion of the detailed design.
Table 3 – One Way System Cost Estimation

Activity

Estimated costs

Detailed Design and Consultation

£8,500

(Includes statutory processes, topographical
procurement, STATS searches, advertising,
consultation, notices, safety audits etc.)

survey
public

Build Cost including Street Lighting

£60,000

Civil Works

£12,000

(road markings, verge conversion and island modification)

Lighting

£31,000

(approximately 15 lit traffic signs)

Accruals

£17,000

(accruals:10 years remaining contract with Bouygues to
maintain electrical asset)

Sub-TOTAL
Implementation & post implementation fee

£68,500
£6,850

(site supervision, checking defect, snagging, remeasure,
certify work and quantity on site, H&S file, completion
certificate fees and finances)

GRAND TOTAL

£75,350

5.2.2 The estimated scheme cost of this recommendation is £75,350. S106 funding of £26,715
has been identified and agreed by Executive Director, Environment to be allocated to this
scheme. The amount of £48,635 is requested from NCIL Area Committee budget.
5.2.3 The work will be carried out under the existing PFI (electrical) and LHMP (non-electrical)
term maintenance contractual arrangements. Future maintenance of electrical apparatus
shall pass to Barnet Lighting Services, the PFI Contractor, who will charge a commuted
sum for the maintenance – the cost of this can be absorbed within existing Council revenue
budgets.

56

5.3

Legal and Constitutional References

5.3.1 The Traffic Management Act 2004 places obligations on authorities to ensure the
expeditious movement of traffic on their road network. Authorities are required to make
arrangements as they consider appropriate for planning and carrying out the action to be
taken in performing the duty.
5.3.2 The Council as the Highway Authority has the necessary legal powers to introduce traffic
signs and road markings in the interest of safety under the Road Traffic Regulation Act
1984 and subsidiary regulations made under that Act.
5.3.3 The terms of reference for the Hendon Area Committees under Article 7 of the Council’s
Constitution includes responsibility for all constituency specific matters relating to the street
scene including parking, road safety, transport, allotments, parks and trees, consider
matters referred from Residents Forums and determine how they are to be taken forward
in consultation with the relevant Area Committee Lead Officer and subject to any
Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) funding requirement being agreed by the Committee
and determine the allocation of CIL funding within the constituency subject to sufficient of
the budget allocated to the committee being unspent.
5.4

Insight

5.4.1 The options developed for the scheme were informed through manual classified traffic
count and onsite observations of the issues.
5.5

Social Value

5.5.1 None in relation to this scheme.
5.6

Risk Management

5.6.1 None in the context of this report. Risk assessment may be required for work resulting from
this report.
5.7

Equalities and Diversity

5.7.1 Section 149 of the Equality Act 2010 requires a decision-maker to have ‘due regard’ to
achieving a number of equality goals: (i) to eliminate discrimination, harassment,
victimisation and any other conduct that is prohibited by the Act; (ii) to advance equality
of opportunity between those with protected characteristics and those without; and (iii) to
foster good relations between persons with a relevant protected characteristic and those
without. The relevant protected characteristics are age, disability, gender reassignment,
pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation. It also
covers marriage and civil partnership with regard to eliminating discrimination.
5.7.2 The safety elements incorporated benefit all road users equally as they would improve
safety and traffic flow at those locations.
5.7.3 The proposal is not expected to disproportionately disadvantage or benefit individual
members of the community.

57

5.8

Corporate Parenting

5.8.1 Not applicable in the context of this report.
5.9

Consultation and Engagement

5.9.1 If the scheme is not progressed, no consultation will be required.
•
5.10

BACKGROUND PAPERS
Hendon Area Committee 15 September 2020

https://barnet.moderngov.co.uk/documents/g10248/Public%20reports%20pack%2015th-Sep2020%2018.00%20Hendon%20Area%20Committee.pdf?T=10

58

1.

Proposed illuminated 'No
Entry' sign on new posts
Proposed illuminated 'No
Entry' sign on new post

Proposed illuminated signs location are
indicative only. Exact locations to be confirmed
on site.

LEGEND:

Proposed one way system

THE

RIDG

Proposed 'One Way'
sign on new post

EWA
Y

Direction of proposed one way
system traffic flow

VE

HIG

H

GR
O

Proposed double yellow lines
(Thin primrose lines)

ST
R

WI
LL

S

EE
T

Proposed illuminated 'One
Way' sign on lamp column
Proposed illuminated 'One
Way' sign on new posts

SPIT

MILE

Proposed 'Unsuitable for
HGVs' sign on new post

HILL

Proposed illuminated
signs on new posts

Proposed illuminated 'No
Entry' sign on new post

This product includes mapping data licensed from Ordinance
Survey with the permission of the Controller of
Her Majesty's Stationery Office.
© Crown copyright and database right 2021. All rights reserved.
London Borough of Barnet. Licence No 100017674

Proposed 'One Way'
sign on lamp column
Proposed illuminated 'One
Way' sign on lamp column

D

EN
S
E
LLI
HO

Proposed illuminated 'No
Entry' sign on new post

HIGH STREET NW7

Proposed illuminated 'One
Way' sign on new posts
Proposed illuminated 'No
Entry' sign on lamp column

ESP

MIL

Existing verge to be
converted to
carriageway for one way
system traffic turning
movement

PROPOSED ONE WAY SYSTEM
GENERAL ARRANGEMENT

IT
L

HIL

59

BC/001965-03_FS_100-01

This page is intentionally left blank

London Borough of Barnet

Hendon Area Committee
Forward Work Programme
February 2021 - October 2021

Contact: pakeezah.rahman@barnet.gov.uk

AGENDA ITEM 16

61

Title of Report

Overview of decision

Report Of (officer)

Issue Type (Non
key/Key/Urgent)

Items for Submission to June Hendon Area Committee
Montrose Ave

Speed Survey results and
recommendations

Executive Director of Environment

Non-key

Heybourne Crescent

Speed Survey results and
recommendations

Executive Director of Environment

Non-key

Shirehall Lane

Speed Survey results and
recommendations

Executive Director of Environment

Non-key

High Street, NW7

Results and recommendations from
Feasibility Study

Executive Director of Environment

Non-key

Items for Submission to October Hendon Area Committee
A41 - Feasibility

Feasibility Study

Executive Director of Environment

Non-key

Edgwarebury Lane

Feasibility Study

Executive Director of Environment

Non-key

Aerodrome Road/ A41

Feasibility Study

Executive Director of Environment

Non-key

62

